
 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511  

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA  

Community Development Authority  

September 25, 2013 at 4:30 pm  

The Forum  

Beloit City Hall  

100 State Street 

 1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

 2. Citizen Participation 

 3. Review and Consideration of the Minutes of the Special Meetings held on August 21 and 30, 2013 

 4. Housing Authority 

a. Presentation of the July Activity Report (Pollard) 

b. Presentation of the July Financial Report (Pollard) 

c. Presentation of the August Activity Report (Pollard) 

d. Presentation of the August Financial Report (Pollard) 

e. Review and consideration of Resolution 2013-29, Authorizing the BHA to Dispose of 

Non-Operable Equipment (Pollard) 

f. Review and consideration of Resolution 2013-26, Authorizing the Revision of the 

Housing Choice Voucher Family Self-Sufficiency Plan (Cole) 

g. Review and consideration of Resolution 2013-25, Authorizing the Revision of the 

Public Housing Family Self-Sufficiency Plan (Cole) 

h. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2013-28, Authorizing the Submission of the 

2013 Housing Choice Voucher Family Self-Sufficiency Coordinator Grant (Cole) 

i. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2013-27, Authorizing the Submission of the 

2013 Public Housing Family Self-Sufficiency Coordinator Grant (Cole) 

 5. Community Development 

a. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2013-30, Recommending Approval of the 2014 Annual 

Action Plan (Downing) 

** Please note that upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of 
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request this service, please 
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511. 



b. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2013-31, Recommending Approval of 

the 2014 Community Development Block Grant Budget (Downing) 

c. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2013-32, Recommending Approval of 

the 2014 HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) Budget 

(Christensen) 

d. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2013-33, Authorizing the CDA to 

Exchange a Portion of the Broad Street Parking Lot with Land Owned by 

Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC (Christensen) 

6. Adjournment 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, notify Ann Purifoy in the Housing Authority Office at 

364-8740 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed: September 20, 2013 Approved: Julie Christensen, Ex. Director 

** Please note that upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of 
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request this service, please 
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511. 



Page 1 of 1 

 

Minutes 
Beloit Community Development Authority 
100 State Street, Beloit WI  53511 
August 21, 2013 
4:30 p.m. 
 
A special meeting of the City of Beloit Community Development Authority was held on 
Wednesday, August 21, 2013 in the Forum of Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Meeting was called to order by Chairman Johnson at 4:35 p.m. 
 
Present:  Commissioners Jacobs, Johnson, Luebke, and Van de Bogart 
Absent:  Commissioners Adama and Evans 
Staff Present:  Julie Christensen 

 
2. Citizen Participation 

None 
 

3. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2013-21, Approving an Underground Broadband 
and Telecommunications Services Utility Easement Agreement in the Broad Street Parking 
Lot 
Commissioner Luebke moved and Commissioner Van De Bogart seconded approval of 
Resolution 2013-21 as submitted.   

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
4. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 4:36 p.m.  



Page 1 of 2 

 

Minutes 
Beloit Community Development Authority 
100 State Street, Beloit WI  53511 
August 30, 2013 
12:00 p.m. 
 
A special meeting of the City of Beloit Community Development Authority was held on Friday, 
August 30, 2013 at Domenico’s Restaurant at 547 E. Grand Avenue, Beloit. 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Meeting was called to order by Chairman Johnson at 12:00 p.m. 
 
Present:  Commissioners Adama, Evans, Johnson, Luebke, and Van de Bogart 
Absent:  Commissioner Jacobs 
Staff Present:  Julie Christensen, Cathy Pollard, and Teri Downing 

 
2. Citizen Participation 

None 
 

3. Review and Consideration of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on June 26, 2013 
Commissioner Luebke moved and Commissioner Van De Bogart seconded approval of the 
minutes as submitted.   

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
4. Housing Authority 

a. Presentation of the May Activity and Financial Reports 
Cathy Pollard presented the May Activity and Financial Reports. 
 

b. Presentation of the June Activity and Financial Reports 
Cathy Pollard presented the June Activity and Financial Reports. 
 

c. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2013-22, Authorization to Write-off Beloit 
Housing Authority Public Housing Tenants Accounts Receivable 2013 Second Quarter 
Vacated Residents 
Cathy Pollard presented Resolution 2013-22.  Commissioner Van De Bogart moved, 
and Commissioner Luebke seconded approval of Resolution 2013-22. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

d. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2013-23, Accepting the FY 2013 Capital Fund 
Program Award 
Cathy Pollard presented Resolution 2013-23.  Commissioner Luebke moved, and 
Commissioner Adama seconded approval of Resolution 2013-23. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. Community Development 
a. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2013-24, Approving the License Agreement 

between the City of Beloit and Community Action, Inc. of Rock and Walworth Counties 
for the Operation of a Community Garden at 1322 Porter Avenue 
Teri Downing presented Resolution 2013-24.  Commissioner Luebke moved, and 
Commissioner Adama seconded approval of Resolution 2013-24.   
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 12:12 p.m.  



REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY 

 

  

 AGENDA ITEM: 4a 

 

 TOPIC: July Activity Report  

 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Information only- No action required 

 

 PRESENTER: Cathy Pollard 

 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT: 

 

Public Housing:  

There were five vacancies in public housing units in July and two upcoming vacancies in 

August of 2013. Public housing accounts receivable on occupied units totaled $2,853.36 and 

vacated units totaled $7,610.41 at the end of July, 2013 which brings the totaled outstanding 

public housing accounts receivable to $10,463.77. Thirty-five applicants were pulled from 

the public housing waiting list in July; nine applicants were briefed. 5 public housing 

inspections and 25 annual and interim re-certifications were completed in July. 

 

Section 8: 

545 vouchers were housed by July 31, 2013 with 5 voucher holders either searching for units 

or waiting for passed inspections. 14 portable vouchers were paid by BHA in July with 

another 2 families waiting to Port-Out. 63 Section 8 inspections were completed in July, and 

the Housing Specialists completed 112 annual or interim re-certifications in July. 32 

applicants were notified; 11 were briefed. 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

July Activity Report 

 

 



 

 

Beloit Community Development Authority 

Activity Report to Board for September 2013 

 

 

July Activity Report 

 

 

Public Housing 

Tenants Accounts Receivable 

 

Outstanding Receivables – Occupied Units 7/31/13 $   2,853.36 

Outstanding Receivables – Vacated Units 7/31/13 $   7,610.41 

 

Outstanding Receivables – Occupied Units 6/30/13 $ 1,787.57    

Outstanding Receivables – Vacated Units 6/30/13 $ 6,141.69  

 

Total July 31, 2013     Outstanding Receivables: $ 10,463.77 

Total June 30, 2013    Outstanding Receivables:   $ 7,929.26 

 

 Increase of: $   2,534.51 

 

Vacancies – 07/31/13 

 

Total Public Housing Units   131 Units   

      96% Occupancy 

 

5 Vacancies:     Elderly - 99% Occupancy  

      Family - 96% Occupancy 

     

     

 

 

 

Public Housing Inspections 

5 Inspections completed. There were 1 annual inspection; there were 4 move-out 

inspections. There were no move-in inspections. There was 0 housekeeping inspection 

and 0 preventative maintenance inspections. 

 

 

Public Housing Activities 

Annual Recerts: 17 

Interim Recerts: 8 

Notice to Vacate: 5 



New Tenants: 1 

Transfers:  1 

Lease Terminations: 1 

Possible Program Violations: 3 

Evictions 0 

 

Public Housing Briefings 

Number Notified:     35 

 Number Briefed:   9 

 

 

Section 8 Program 

 

Total Section 8 Vouchers  598 Vouchers 

 

July 545 under lease - 91% Occupancy 

14 Portable Vouchers –14 Not Absorbed (12/Port-In) 

 5 Voucher holders searching or waiting for passed 

inspections 

  

 

Section 8 Inspections 

63 inspections were completed in July. 32 were annual inspections. 16 were initial 

inspections, 13 were re-inspections, 0 project based inspections and there were 2 special 

inspections. 

 

 

Section 8 Activities  

 

New Participants:  5 

Annual Recerts:  21 

Interim Recerts:  41 

Abatements:  3 

Movers:   15 

Possible Program  

Violations:    14 program violations 

       End of Program   0     

 

Section 8 Briefings 

 

Number Notified: 32          

Number Briefed:                                   11 

 



 

 

 

APPLICATIONS:  Iformation not available due to software conversion 

  

Applications Taken:   East     

     Parker Bluff  

     West        

     Sec. 8    

     Proj. Based    

 

 

 

 

     

Waiting List:   290 Public Housing East 

    273      Public Housing West 

      89      Parker Bluff 

      49 Project-Based 

    786 Sec. 8  

 

 

0 Tenants removed for Repayment Default 

    0 Tenants removed for unreported income 

    0 Tenants removed for unauthorized occupants 

1  Applicants removed for debts owed 

 Some applicants are on both lists, some are not 

    Section 8 waiting list opened 4/4/11       

 

  

 



REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

AGENDA ITEM: 4b

TOPIC: Monthly Reports

REQUESTED ACTION: Information only – No action required

PRESENTER: Cathy Pollard

STAFF REPORT:

Attached is the Beloit Housing Authority Financial Statement for the month ending July
31, 2013 prepared by the BHA Accountant. Beloit Apartments Redevelopment, LLC
activities are included with Public Housing for purposes of this report.

Through the month of July, the Low Income Public Housing (LIPH) program income was
$496,569, Project Based Voucher (PBV) program income was $18,098 and the Housing
Choice Voucher (HCV) program was $1,819,244, for a combined income of $2,333,910,
which is $336,654 less than budgeted year-to-date.

Through the month of July, the Low Income Public Housing (LIPH) program expenses
were $620,653, Project Based Voucher (PBV) program expenses were $24,642 and the
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program expenses were $1,906,565. Combined program
expenses are $2,551,859, which is $28,948 less than the approved budget year to date.

Through the month of July, the Housing Authority shows an overall deficit of ($217,949)
year-to-date. Public Housing deficit is ($162,753), Redevelopment Phase 1 & 2 surplus is
$38,669, Project Based Voucher deficit is ($6,544), Section 8 administrative deficit is
($29,471), and Section 8 HAP deficit is ($57,850).

Through the month of July, the FSS program has 12 of the 30 enrolled tenants holding
escrow accounts totaling $10,094.82. The Homeownership program has 2 tenants
receiving homeownership assistance payments in July totaling $1,073.

ATTACHMENTS:
Monthly Financial Report



BHA YTD
Actual

LLC
Phase 1 & 2

Actual
HCV YTD

Actual YTD Budget
Variance

Over (Under)

Income
Dwelling Rent/Utilities 19,733.00 71,893.66 - 141,338.75 (49,712.09)
Interest on Investments 226.42 203.23 118.13 478.33 69.45
Other Income 15,292.55 199,760.63 2,086.50 132,297.67 84,842.01
HUD Admin Fees - - 182,121.00 204,796.08 (22,675.08)
HUD Grants/Subsidies 207,556.67 - 1,634,918.26 2,191,652.75 (349,177.82)

Total Income 242,808.64 271,857.52 1,819,243.89 2,670,563.58 (336,653.53)

Expenses
BHA YTD

Actual

LLC
Phase 1 & 2

Actual
HCV YTD

Actual YTD Budget
Variance

Under (Over)

Administrative
Salaries/Benefits 137,367.23 56,274.77 172,700.42 391,603.98 25,261.55
Office Expenses 25,400.70 37,530.30 28,343.36 51,330.42 (39,943.94)
Office Contracted Services 9,399.86 - 9,239.97 11,900.00 (6,739.83)
Oper Sub Transfer/Mgmt Fee Pd - 6,875.93 - 15,516.67 8,640.74
Housing Assistance Pmts - - 1,692,768.46 1,755,663.58 62,895.12

Maintenance
Salaries/Benefits 50,297.57 70,216.69 - 125,955.03 5,440.77
Materials & Supplies 2,468.51 7,549.58 - 5,313.00 (4,705.09)
Maintenance Contracts 8,010.20 11,539.29 - 17,704.17 (1,845.32)
Utilities 9,957.36 24,483.67 - 10,791.67 (23,649.36)

Other Operating
Protective Services 1,117.30 2,931.86 - 3,966.67 (82.49)
Insurance 3,629.55 8,470.49 3,512.72 13,202.04 (2,410.72)
PILOT 1,389.73 4,741.00 - 17,049.08 10,918.35
Other Operating Expenses 163,067.60 2,574.92 - 160,810.42 (4,832.10)

Total Expenses 412,105.61 233,188.50 1,906,564.93 2,580,806.71 28,947.67

Net Admin Income (Loss) (169,296.97) 38,669.02 (29,470.84)
Net HAP Income (Loss) (57,850.20)

Total YTD Income (Loss) (169,296.97) 38,669.02 (87,321.04)

Cash Flow Statement

Beloit Housing Authority

July 31, 2013



REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY 

 

  

 AGENDA ITEM: 4c 

 

 TOPIC: August Activity Report  

 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Information only- No action required 

 

 PRESENTER: Cathy Pollard 

 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT: 

 

Public Housing:  

There were two vacancies in public housing units in August and three upcoming vacancies in 

September of 2013. Public housing accounts receivable on occupied units totaled $3,183.24 

and vacated units totaled $9,262.41 at the end of July, 2013 which brings the totaled 

outstanding public housing accounts receivable to $12,445.65. Three applicants were pulled 

from the public housing waiting list in August; two applicants were briefed. 23 public 

housing inspections and 16 annual and interim re-certifications were completed in August. 

 

Section 8: 

555 vouchers were housed by August 31, 2013 with 15 voucher holders either searching for 

units or waiting for passed inspections. 15 portable vouchers were paid by BHA in August 

with another 3 families waiting to Port-Out. 93 Section 8 inspections were completed in 

August, and the Housing Specialists completed 72 annual or interim re-certifications in 

August. 16 applicants were notified; 8 were briefed. 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

August Activity Report 

 

 



 

 

Beloit Community Development Authority 

Activity Report to Board for September 2013 

 

 

August Activity Report 

 

 

Public Housing 

Tenants Accounts Receivable 

 

Outstanding Receivables – Occupied Units 7/31/13 $   2,853.36 

Outstanding Receivables – Vacated Units 7/31/13 $   7,610.41 

 

Outstanding Receivables – Occupied Units 8/31/13 $ 3,183.24    

Outstanding Receivables – Vacated Units 8/31/13 $ 9,262.41  

 

Total July 31, 2013     Outstanding Receivables: $ 10,463.77 

Total June 30, 2013    Outstanding Receivables:   $ 12,445.65 

 

 Increase of: $   1,981.88 

 

Vacancies – 08/31/13 

 

Total Public Housing Units   131 Units   

      98% Occupancy 

 

2 Vacancies:     Elderly - 100% Occupancy  

      Family - 98% Occupancy 

     

     

 

 

 

Public Housing Inspections 

23 Inspections completed. There were 17 annual inspections; there were no move-out 

inspections. There were 3 move-in inspections. There were 3 housekeeping inspections 

and 0 preventative maintenance inspections. 

 

 

Public Housing Activities 

Annual Recerts: 3 

Interim Recerts: 13 

Notice to Vacate: 0 



New Tenants: 2 

Transfers:  1 

Lease Terminations: 3 

Possible Program Violations: 1 

Evictions 1 

 

Public Housing Briefings 

Number Notified:     3 

 Number Briefed:   2 

 

 

Section 8 Program 

 

Total Section 8 Vouchers  598 Vouchers 

 

August 555 under lease - 93% Occupancy 

15 Portable Vouchers –14 Not Absorbed (0/Port-In) 

 15 Voucher holders searching or waiting for passed 

inspections 

  

 

Section 8 Inspections 

93 inspections were completed in August. 62 were annual inspections. 14 were initial 

inspections, 14 were re-inspections, 0 project based inspections and there were 3 special 

inspections. 

 

 

Section 8 Activities  

 

New Participants:  8 

Annual Recerts:  21 

Interim Recerts:  41 

Abatements:  0 

Movers:   17 

Possible Program  

Violations:    6 program violations 

       End of Program   1     

 

Section 8 Briefings 

 

Number Notified: 16          

Number Briefed:                                   8 

 



 

 

 

APPLICATIONS:  Iformation not available due to software conversion 

  

Applications Taken:  12 East     

    9 Parker Bluff  

    20 West        

    20 Sec. 8    

    3 Proj. Based    

 

 

 

 

     

Waiting List:   302 Public Housing East 

    293      Public Housing West 

      98      Parker Bluff 

      52 Project-Based 

    806 Sec. 8  

 

 

0 Tenants removed for Repayment Default 

    0 Tenants removed for unreported income 

    0 Tenants removed for unauthorized occupants 

1  Applicants removed for debts owed 

 Some applicants are on both lists, some are not 

    Section 8 waiting list opened 4/4/11       

 

  

 



REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

AGENDA ITEM: 4d

TOPIC: Monthly Reports

REQUESTED ACTION: Information only – No action required

PRESENTER: Cathy Pollard

STAFF REPORT:

Attached is the Beloit Housing Authority Financial Statement for the month ending
August 31, 2013 prepared by the BHA Accountant. Beloit Apartments Redevelopment,
LLC activities are included with Public Housing for purposes of this report.

Through the month of August, the Low Income Public Housing (LIPH) program income
was $563,318, Project Based Voucher (PBV) program income was $23,617 and the
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program was $2,020,116, for a combined income of
$2,607,050, which is $445,023 less than budgeted year-to-date.

Through the month of August, the Low Income Public Housing (LIPH) program
expenses were $721,793, Project Based Voucher (PBV) program expenses were $28,492
and the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program expenses were $2,175,725. Combined
program expenses are $2,926,010, which is $23,483 less than the approved budget year to
date.

Through the month of August, the Housing Authority shows an overall deficit of
($318,960) year-to-date. Public Housing deficit is ($199,964), Redevelopment Phase 1 &
2 surplus is $41,489, Project Based Voucher deficit is ($4,876), Section 8 administrative
deficit is ($40,824), and Section 8 HAP deficit is ($114,785).

Through the month of August, the FSS program has 12 of the 29 enrolled tenants holding
escrow accounts totaling $8,895.76. One tenant forfeited their escrow in August due to
not completing their FSS contract. The Homeownership program has 2 tenants receiving
homeownership assistance payments in August totaling $1,073.

ATTACHMENTS:
Monthly Financial Report



BHA YTD
Actual

LLC
Phase 1 & 2

Actual
HCV YTD

Actual YTD Budget
Variance

Over (Under)

Income
Dwelling Rent/Utilities 25,252.00 81,107.66 - 161,530.00 (55,170.34)
Interest on Investments 252.44 257.00 132.80 546.67 95.57
Other Income 15,848.09 228,365.92 3,638.50 151,197.33 96,655.18
HUD Admin Fees - - 207,178.00 234,052.67 (26,874.67)
HUD Grants/Subsidies 235,851.00 - 1,809,166.53 2,504,746.00 (459,728.47)

Total Income 277,203.53 309,730.58 2,020,115.83 3,052,072.67 (445,022.73)

Expenses
BHA YTD

Actual

LLC
Phase 1 & 2

Actual
HCV YTD

Actual YTD Budget
Variance

Under (Over)

Administrative
Salaries/Benefits 164,969.97 67,090.59 206,715.24 447,547.40 8,771.60
Office Expenses 28,254.34 38,079.59 31,484.17 58,663.33 (39,154.77)
Office Contracted Services 9,687.97 - 9,539.82 13,600.00 (5,627.79)
Oper Sub Transfer/Mgmt Fee Pd - 7,381.47 - 17,733.33 10,351.86
Housing Assistance Pmts - - 1,923,951.73 2,006,472.67 82,520.94

Maintenance
Salaries/Benefits 60,062.65 83,991.06 - 143,948.60 (105.11)
Materials & Supplies 3,085.52 10,012.52 - 6,072.00 (7,026.04)
Maintenance Contracts 8,765.83 13,792.98 - 20,233.33 (2,325.48)
Utilities 10,977.36 27,062.08 - 12,333.33 (25,706.11)

Other Operating
Protective Services 1,191.94 3,172.94 - 4,533.33 168.45
Insurance 4,077.15 9,676.56 4,033.73 15,088.05 (2,699.39)
PILOT 1,923.57 5,407.26 - 19,484.67 12,153.84
Other Operating Expenses 189,047.17 2,574.92 - 183,783.33 (7,838.76)

Total Expenses 482,043.47 268,241.97 2,175,724.69 2,949,493.38 23,483.25

Net Admin Income (Loss) (204,839.94) 41,488.61 (40,823.66)
Net HAP Income (Loss) (114,785.20)

Total YTD Income (Loss) (204,839.94) 41,488.61 (155,608.86)

Cash Flow Statement

Beloit Housing Authority

August 31, 2013



 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

  

 AGENDA ITEM: 4e 

 

 TOPIC: Resolution No. 2013-29 

  Beloit Housing Authority (BHA) 

  Approval to Dispose of Non-Operable Equipment and Appliances 

   

 

REQUESTED ACTION:  Approval of Resolution No. 2013-29 

 

 PRESENTER: Cathy Pollard 

 

      

STAFF REPORT: 

 

Occasionally, BHA accumulates equipment and appliance which have out lasted their usefulness or 

are no longer operable. When this occurs, BHA removes these items from the inventory list and 

disposes of them through appropriate means. At this time, due to a fire at 1117 Highland, BHA is 

required to remove unused items from the storage garage on that site and to dispose of non-operable 

items.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2013-29 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

Resolution No. 2013-29 

 

  



 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2013-29 

 
AUTHORIZATION FOR THE BELOIT HOUSING AUTHORITY (BHA) TO DISPOSE OF 

NON-OPERATING APPLIANCES AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority periodically replaces damaged and/or 

non-operating appliances and equipment that are beyond economical repair; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority keeps a record of all disposed property 

by manufacturer name, model number, and serial number and maintains this record in its 
computerized inventory database; and 

  
WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority disposes of these items by use of scrappers 

at no cost to the Authority; and 
  
WHEREAS, the annual audit also monitors the disposal of all appliances and 

equipment as does the BHA Director and Fee Accountant; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Beloit Community Development 

Authority Board of Commissioners authorize the BHA Director to approve the timely 
disposal of the damaged and non-operating appliances and equipment itemized on 
Attachment A. 

 
Adopted this 25th day of September, 2013. 
 
 

  
Thomas  Johnson, Chairman 
Beloit Community Development Authority 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen, Executive Director 
Beloit Community Development Authority 
 
 



REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

AGENDA ITEM: 4f 

TOPIC: Resolution No. 2013-26: 
Approval of the changes made to the FSS Action 

Plan for the Section 8 program 

REQUESTED ACTION: Approval of Resolution No. 2013-26

   
PRESENTER: Rebecca Melito 

STAFF REPORT: 

HUD requires all FSS Programs to have an Action Plan for their program. The BHA would like to 

change the Action Plan to include wordage that participants must be employed for at least three months 

prior to their contract end date in order to graduate from the program. 

Prior to this, there has been nothing stating how long the participant needed to be working in order 

to graduate from the program, thus receiving all of their escrow funds.   

STAFF RECOMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2013-26 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 2013-26 and attached 
Action Plan will be added to the September 
25, 2013 meeting. 

 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2013-26 

APPROVAL OF REVISION TO BELOIT HOUSING AUTHORITY’S HOUSING  

CHOICE VOUCHER FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY ACTION PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority operates a Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) 

Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) program through the United States 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) with the goal of 

increasing the economic self-sufficiency of HCV program participants; 

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority currently has a HCV FSS Action Plan that 

guides the operation of, and outlines the rules and regulations of the FSS 

program; 

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority must periodically revise the HCV FSS Action 

Plan to maintain compliance with HUD regulations, as well as to maximize 

program efficiency; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Beloit Housing Authority through 

the Community Development Authority Board of Commissioners resolve 

to approve the revision to the HCV FSS Action Plan. 

Adopted this 25th day of September, 2013 

Thomas Johnson, Chairman 

Beloit Community Development Authority 

ATTEST: 

Julie Christensen, Executive Director 

Beloit Community Development Authority 



REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

AGENDA ITEM: 4g 

TOPIC: Resolution No. 2013-25: 
Approval of the changes made to the FSS Action 

Plan for the Public Housing program 

REQUESTED ACTION: Approval of Resolution No. 2013-25

   
PRESENTER: Rebecca Melito 

STAFF REPORT: 

HUD requires all FSS Programs to have an Action Plan for their program. The BHA would like to 

change the Action Plan to include wordage that participants must be employed for at least three months 

prior to their contract end date in order to graduate from the program. 

Prior to this, there has been nothing stating how long the participant needed to be working in order 

to graduate from the program, thus receiving all of their escrow funds.   

STAFF RECOMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2013-25 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 2013-25 and attached 
Action Plan will be added to the September 
25, 2013 meeting. 

 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2013-25 

APPROVAL OF REVISION TO BELOIT HOUSING AUTHORITY’S PUBLIC  

HOUSING FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY ACTION PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority operates a Public Housing Family Self-

Sufficiency (FSS) program through the United States Department of 

Housing and Urban Development (HUD) with the goal of increasing the 

economic self-sufficiency of Public Housing program participants; 

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority currently has a Public Housing FSS Action 

Plan that guides the operation of, and outlines the rules and regulations of 

the FSS program; 

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority must periodically revise the Public Housing 

FSS Action Plan to maintain compliance with HUD regulations, as well as 

to maximize program efficiency; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Beloit Housing Authority through 

the Community Development Authority Board of Commissioners resolve 

to approve the revision to the Public Housing FSS Action Plan. 

Adopted this 25th day of September, 2013 

Thomas Johnson, Chairman 

Beloit Community Development Authority 

ATTEST: 

Julie Christensen, Executive Director 

Beloit Community Development Authority 



 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

  

 AGENDA ITEM: 4h 

 

 TOPIC: Resolution No. 2013-28 

  Beloit Housing Authority (BHA) 

  Approval To Submit an Application for the FY2013  

  Housing Choice Voucher Self-Sufficiency Coordinator Grant 

 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Approval of Resolution No. 2013-28 

 

 PRESENTER: Cathy Pollard 

 

 

STAFF REPORT: 

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has posted a NOFA regarding funding 

for the FY 2013 Housing Choice Voucher Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Coordinator grant. The 

grant cycle is yearly. Applying for the FY 2013 FSS grant in the amount of $69,000 will enable the 

BHA to maintain a staff position that will continue to work individually with families to assist with 

their identified objectives and goals.  

 

STAFF RECOMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2013-28 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

Resolution No. 2013-28 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-28 

BELOIT HOUSING AUTHORITY 

RECOMMENDING THAT THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

APPLY FOR FY2013 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER  

FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY (FSS)  

COORDINATOR GRANT 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the United Stated Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

has funds available this year to fund the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) 

FSS Program Coordinator position; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority (BHA) has identified HVC FSS as a needed 

service to enhance the lives of Section 8 residents and BHA wishes to 

implement the program per the its Consolidated Plan; 

 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Community Development Authority Board  

of Commissioners authorize application for the FY2013 HCV Family 

Self-Sufficiency  Grant in the amount of $69,000.  

 

 

Adopted this 25th day of September, 2013 

 

 

     ______________________________________ 

     Thomas Johnson, Chairman 

     Beloit Community Development Authority 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Julie Christensen, CDA Executive Director 

 



 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

  

 AGENDA ITEM: 4i 

 

 TOPIC: Resolution No. 2013-27 

  Beloit Housing Authority (BHA) 

  Approval To Submit an Application for the FY2013  

  Public Housing Self-Sufficiency Coordinator Grant 

 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Approval of Resolution No. 2013-27 

 

 PRESENTER: Cathy Pollard 

 

 

STAFF REPORT: 

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has posted a NOFA regarding funding 

for the FY 2013 Public Housing Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Coordinator grant. The grant cycle 

is yearly. Applying for the FY 2013 FSS grant in the amount of $69,000 will enable the BHA to 

maintain a staff position that will continue to work individually with families to assist with their 

identified objectives and goals.  

 

STAFF RECOMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2013-27 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

 

Resolution No. 2013-27 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-27 

BELOIT HOUSING AUTHORITY 

RECOMMENDING THAT THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

APPLY FOR FY2013 PUBLIC HOUSING  

FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY (FSS)  

COORDINATOR GRANT 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the United Stated Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

has funds available this year to fund the Public Housing FSS Program 

Coordinator position; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority (BHA) has identified Public Housing FSS as 

a needed service to enhance the lives of Public Housing residents and 

BHA wishes to implement the program per the its Consolidated Plan; 

 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Community Development Authority Board  

of Commissioners authorize application for the FY2013 Public Housing  

Family Self-Sufficiency  Grant in the amount of $69,000.  

 

 

Adopted this 25th day of September, 2013 

 

 

     ______________________________________ 

     Thomas Johnson, Chairman 

     Beloit Community Development Authority 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Julie Christensen, CDA Executive Director 

 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 AGENDA ITEM: 5a 
 
 TOPIC: 2014 Annual Action Plan 
 
  ACTION: Consideration of Resolution 2013-30 Recommending Approval 

of the 2013 Annual Action Plan 
 
 PRESENTER: Teri Downing 
 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
Attached is a resolution recommending approval of the 2014 Annual Action Plan.  The 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires each entitlement community 
receiving an annual allocation of CDBG funds to submit an Annual Action Plan each year.  It is a 
template created by HUD and includes specific objectives for housing, homelessness, public 
housing and community development.  It also includes information on the CDBG process, 
affordable housing, and special needs populations.   
 
A 30-day review period is required for the Annual Action Plan, which will begin October 1st. 
The City Council will hold a public hearing on the Annual Action Plan and CDBG budget on 
October 21.  A notice announcing the 30-day public review period will be published in the 
Beloit Daily News, posted on the front page of the City’s website, mailed to agencies and 
individuals on the CDBG mailing list. During the 30-day public review period the Annual Action 
Plan and 2014 budget will be available to the public at the Beloit Public Library, 3rd floor of City 
Hall, and on the City’s website. Once the required 30-day public review period is completed, 
the City Council will act on the plan and it will be submitted to HUD for their review and 
approval.     
 
Attached is the proposed Annual Action Plan. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends that the Resolution 2013-30 be approved.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Annual Action Plan and Resolution 2013-30 



 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2013-30 

RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF THE  
2014 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires all 
local units of government that receive Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds 
to submit an annual plan for each year that they receive CDBG funding, and 

 
WHEREAS, the plan provides guidance in how CDBG funds will be allocated over the 

next year and how the City of Beloit intends to address its housing, public housing, 
homeless and community development needs, and 

 
WHEREAS, all CDBG-funded projects must be consistent with the Annual Action 

Plan and its overall goals and strategies. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Community Development Authority 
recommends approval of the 2014 Annual Action Plan. 
 
Adopted this 25th day of September, 2013. 
 
 

 
 

         
Thomas Johnson, Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
                                                        
Julie Christensen, Executive Director 



2014 Action Plan 1 Version 2.0

Fifth Program Year
2014 Action Plan

The CPMP 2014 Annual Action Plan includes the SF 424 and Narrative Responses to
Action Plan questions that CDBG, HOME, HOPWA, and ESG grantees must respond to
each year in order to be compliant with the Consolidated Planning Regulations. As of
May 2006, the Executive Summary narratives are required.

Narrative Responses

GENERAL

GRANTEE: City of Beloit

CON PLAN PERIOD: 2010 to 2014

Executive Summary (92.220(b))

1. The Executive Summary is required. Include the objectives and
outcomes identified in the plan and an evaluation of past performance.

PY 2014 Action Plan Executive Summary:

Specific Housing Objectives

 Develop a variety of housing alternatives in order to satisfy a wider range of
housing needs.

 Use the existing programs and resources to improve Beloit’s older housing
stock.

 Promote the conversion of rental to owner-occupied housing in
neighborhoods with unusually high percentages of rental properties.

 Promote homeownership as an alternative to renting for qualified
households.

 Support programs that enable homeowners to retain their homes, including
foreclosure prevention programs.

 Support programs that enable elderly and disabled families to sustain and
maintain homes.

 Support neighborhood revitalization efforts.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 2 Version 2.0

Evaluation of Past Performance

 The City of Beloit provided housing rehabilitation loans to low to moderate
income homeowners and landlords renting to low to moderate income
tenants. This program generates income and consequently continues to be
available each year.

 The City of Beloit supported Neighborhood Housing Services’ Foreclosure
Prevention Program, which helps people stay in their homes.

 The City of Beloit supported the Senior Chore Service program and the
Home Companion Registry which helps the elderly and disabled live
independently in their homes.

Public Housing Strategies

 The BHA will work with Neighborhood Housing Services (NHS) to provide
homeownership opportunities for its clients.

 The BHA will work with community partners to provide volunteer
opportunities for BHA residents and applicants, which exposes the extremely
low-income, low-income and moderate-income households to opportunities
to increase their job training skills, people skills and self-esteem.

 The BHA will conduct strategic planning to address immediate capital needs
with HUD’s Capital Funds Program grant money. The BHA may have the
opportunity to use other resources such as CDBG funds, HOPE VI funds, and
WHEDA funds for longer-term projects such as the tax credit project now
underway.

 The BHA will encourage extremely low-income, low-income and moderate-
income families to utilize the least resistive housing opportunities available
to them. They have a choice of programs that include public housing,
Section 8 rental assistance, Section 8 homeownership and Family Self-
Sufficiency.

Evaluation of Past Performance

 The Beloit Housing Authority has partnered with NHS over the past several
years to provide training and education opportunities for its Family Self-
Sufficiency and Homeownership Voucher program participants.

 The Beloit Housing Authority contracted with Voluntary Action Center to
provide volunteer opportunities for its public housing residents.

Specific Homeless Strategies

 The City will continue to support and strengthen the limited resources of
agencies that provide services and facilities for homeless persons in the City
of Beloit.

 The City will continue to support Family Services Association and Community
Action, Inc. and their transitional housing programs.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 3 Version 2.0

 The City will continue to support non-profits such as NHS and Family
Services Association that provide programs to prevent foreclosures such as
credit counseling and foreclosure prevention grants.

 The City will support programs that provide a comprehensive strategy to
address clients’ needs including case management, supportive housing, and
client advocacy.

Evaluation of Past Performance

 The City of Beloit continued to provide CDBG funding to homeless programs
and services that meet critical needs.

Action Plan Required Elements:

Geographic Distribution/Allocation Priorities:

1. Describe the geographic areas of the jurisdiction (including areas of low
income families and/or racial/minority concentration) in which
assistance will be directed during the next year.

*Please note that maps or other attachments may be included as additional files within the CPMP
Tool.

PY 2014 Action Plan Geographic Distribution/Allocation response:
CDBG programming will be provided City-wide, with priority given to areas with
minority or low-income concentrations. Minority concentrations are census
tracts in which the total percentage of minority households is higher than would
be expected based upon average racial distributions. Census tracts 16, 17, 18
and 23 are classified as areas of minority concentration.

The 2005-2009 American Community Survey data shows low-income census
tracts in the City of Beloit as 15, 16, 17, 18, and 21. All of these census tracts
also have high concentrations of very-low income households. Roughly 26% of
households in the City of Beloit are living at incomes at or below 30% of the
County Median Income. However, the City will not be dedicating a set
percentage of funds to any minority or low-income area.

2. Describe the reasons for allocating investments geographically within
the jurisdiction (or within the EMSA for HOPWA) (91.215(a)(1)) during
the next year and the rationale for assigning the priorities.

PY 2014 Action Plan Geographic Distribution/Allocation response:
Priority is given to those serving minority or low-income populations. The City
also attempts to fund activities each year in the City’s targeted neighborhoods,
which include the Near Westside, Merrill and Shore Drive neighborhoods. The
relative priority of needs was determined based on public comment received
over the past five years. The City will not be dedicating a set amount of funds to
any geographic area of the City. The majority of the programs funded are
provided on a City-wide basis.

3. Describe actions that will take place during the next year to address
obstacles to meeting underserved needs.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 4 Version 2.0

PY 2014 Action Plan Geographic Distribution/Allocation response:
One of the key obstacles to meeting the underserved needs in Beloit is lack of
adequate funding or other non-financial resources to adequately address a
particular problem. Insufficient funding precludes the City from appropriately
addressing every worthy project and often includes allocating funding at less
than an optimal amount. The City does not fund programs which duplicate the
work of other programs.

Non-financial resource limitations include insufficient numbers of trained
volunteers or staff to provide expertise and support for programs and language
barriers. The City will also partner with the non-profits and others to consolidate
resources. The City is part of the Rock County Homeless Intervention Task
Force which works to consolidate resources, financial and non-financial, to meet
the needs of all of Rock County.

Sources of Funds:

4. Identify the federal, state, and local resources the jurisdiction expects
to receive to address the needs identified in the plan. Federal resources
should include Section 8 funds made available to the jurisdiction, Low-
Income Housing Tax Credits, and competitive McKinney-Vento Homeless
Assistance Act funds expected to be available to address priority needs
and specific objectives identified in the strategic plan. (92.220(c)(1))

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:
$500,000 in Community Development Block Grant, $137,673 in HOME
Investment Partnerships program funds, approximately $400,000 in Low Income
Public Housing Operating Subsidy, $3,135,000 in Housing Choice Voucher
Housing Assistance Payment Subsidy, $340,000 in Housing Choice Voucher
Administrative Subsidy, and $165,000 in Capital Fund Program dollars are
expected to be available in 2014.

5. If you plan to dedicate funds within a local targeted area, provide the
boundaries of the targeted area and an estimate of the percentage of
funds you plan to dedicate to target area(s). (91.220(f))

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:
We do not intend to dedicate funds within a local targeted area in 2014.

6. If your plan includes a Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area or
Areas, please identify the census tracts for each NRSA and an estimate
of the percentage of funds you plan to dedicate to the NRSA(s).

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:
Our plan does not include a Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area.

7. Explain how federal funds will leverage resources from private and non-
federal public sources.

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 5 Version 2.0

The Community Development Block Grant funds used by local agencies are only
a small portion of their overall budgets. However, these funds allow them to
leverage other local dollars, including United Way funds, and other state, federal
and private funds.

8. Provide a description of how matching requirements of HUD’s programs
will be satisfied.

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:
There are no matching requirements for Community Development Block Grant
Program. Janesville is the PJ for our HOME dollars, so the match requirements
for the HOME program will be reflected in its Annual Action Plan. We do not
receive any other federal funds with match requirements.

9. If the jurisdiction deems it appropriate, indicate publicly owned land or
property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to carry out
the plan.

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:
There is no publicly owned land or property which will be used to carry out the
plan.

Managing the Process

10. Identify the significant aspects of the process, by which the plan was
developed, and the agencies, groups, organizations, and others who
participated in the process.

PY 2014 Action Plan Managing the Process response:
Preparation of the Consolidated Plan included meeting with a steering committee
(the Consolidated Planning Committee) which included members of the following
organizations:

Beloit Youth Place Merrill Community Center
Caritas Neighborhood Housing Services
Community Action, Inc. Stateline Literacy Council
Habitat for Humanity Stateline United Way
Homeless Intervention Task Force Voluntary Action Center
Home Companion Registry

The Committee met three times over a 10 week period to discuss informational
needs, develop formal strategies, and discuss public meetings. The City also held
public hearings and hosted public meetings.

For the Annual Plan, a public hearing was held on July 18 to solicit citizen input
on community development, housing, public housing and homeless needs in the
City of Beloit. A notice was published in the newspaper and a notice was mailed
to the City’s CDBG mailing list which includes service providers, citizens,
neighborhood representatives, and business advocates. No one spoke at the
public hearing.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 6 Version 2.0

11. Describe actions that will take place during the next year to enhance
coordination between public and private housing, health, and social
service agencies.

PY 2014 Action Plan Managing the Process response:
The City is an active participant on several committees and boards including
Neighborhood Housing Services of Beloit, African American Infant Mortality
Coalition, Homeless Education Action Team, and the Homeless Intervention Task
Force. Additionally, a City Council member is appointed to the Community
Action Board. The City also has a good relationship with Rock County’s
Community Development and Health departments, and the City Manager meets
with Rock County officials on a regular basis.

Citizen Participation (91.220(b))

12. Provide a description of the process used to allow citizens to review and
submit comments on the proposed consolidated annual plan, including
how the plan (or a summary of the plan) was published for review; the
dates, times and locations of a public hearing, or hearings; when and
how notice was provided to citizens of the hearing(s); the dates of the
30 day citizen comment period, and if technical assistance was provided
to groups developing proposals for funding assistance under the
consolidated plan and how this assistance was provided.

PY 2014 Action Plan Citizen Participation response:
The City of Beloit gave its citizens the opportunity to participate in an advisory
role in planning, implementing, and assessing CDBG programs. Information
about the goals of the CDBG program and the activities it funds was provided to
all interested stakeholders. Public hearings were held to gauge the views of
citizens. The City held a public hearing on July 15, 2013 to give citizens an
opportunity to identify issues which needed to be identified in the Annual Plan. A
notice was published in the Beloit Daily News on July 13 and the Stateline News
on July 14 notifying the public of the public hearing. Additionally, the City put
the notice on the City’s website on July 9, and the City Manager discussed the
public hearing in his weekly e-newsletter to the citizens. The notice was also
mailed to the CDBG mailing list, which includes the non-profit organizations and
other interested agencies which provide services to low income people in Beloit.

The CDBG budget process began when notices were published on July 13 in the
Beloit Daily News and July 14 in The Stateline News announcing that applications
were available. A notice was also mailed to the CDBG mailing list on July 12,
2013 notifying agencies and interested parties that applications were available.
Anyone needing assistance with filling out an application, determining the
eligibility of a project or other CDBG assistance was helped.

The CDA reviewed the Annual Plan and budget on September 25, 2013 and
recommended approval of both the plan and the budget. This meeting was
provided to the media and posted on the City’s website on September 20. A
notice was published in the Stateline News on September 29, 2013 and in the
Beloit Daily News on September 29, 2013 notifying the public of the 30-day
public review period which began on October 1, 2013 and ended on October 31,
2013. This notice also notified the public that the plan and budget were
available on the City’s website, at City Hall and at the Beloit Public Library. It



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 7 Version 2.0

also informed the public that a public hearing would be held on October 21 and
that final City Council action would take place on November 4, 2013. This notice
was also mailed to the CDBG mailing list.

On October 21, a public hearing was held to give citizens an opportunity to
comment on the proposed Annual Plan and proposed 2014 CDBG budget. Marc
Perry, Director of Planning and Development at from Community Action, Inc.
spoke at the public hearing. He said that the CDBG funds allocated to public
service organizations help the community immensely. On November 5, the
Annual Plan, and 2014 CDBG budget were reviewed and approved at a City
Council meeting.

The Beloit Daily News, Stateline News, City Hall, the Public Library, and the City
of Beloit’s website were also utilized to disseminate information to the public.
Citizens were able to review the Annual Plan at City Hall or the Beloit Public
Library, and it was also posted on the City’s website. Staff was available to
provide assistance to Spanish-speaking residents who were interested in the
plan documents. The City has bi-lingual staff in the Department who can
provide this assistance.

13. Provide a summary of efforts made to broaden public participation in
the development of the consolidated annual plan, including outreach to
minorities and non-English speaking persons, as well as persons with
disabilities.

PY 2014 Action Plan Managing the Process response:
The annual plan was developed using the information and priorities established
in the five-year plan. The process for developing the five-year plan included the
establishment of a Steering Committee comprised of representatives from a
range of homeless and minority programs.

Organizations which provide assistance to person with disabilities including
Home Companion Registry, the Beloit Housing Authority, and Senior Chore
Service were represented on the committee. Stateline Literacy Council which
provides services to the growing Hispanic population was also involved in the
process. Hands of Faith, an organization which provides services to homeless
families, and Community Action, which provides a multitude of housing and
homeless programs, was represented on the committee. For the 2014 Annual
Plan, objectives and goals were reflective of the original five-year plan, which
included input from a broad array of groups.

Staff was available to provide assistance to Spanish-speaking residents who
were interested in getting involved in the planning process. The City has bi-
lingual staff in the Department who can provide this assistance.

14. Provide a summary of citizen comments or views on the annual plan.

PY 2014 Action Plan Managing the Process response:
Marc Perry from Community Action Inc. spoke during the public hearing on July
15, 2013. He indicated that there is a tremendous need in housing and that
sustaining housing is critical for the community. He said there is especially a
need the area of rental assistance, long-term housing, transitional housing, and
housing stability. A public hearing was also held on October 21, 2013. Marc



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 8 Version 2.0

Perry, Director of Planning and Development at from Community Action, Inc.
spoke and said that the CDBG funds allocated to public service organizations
help the community immensely. No written comments were filed.

15. Provide a written explanation of comments not accepted and the
reasons why these comments were not accepted.

*Please note that Citizen Comments and Responses may be included as additional files within the
CPMP Tool.

PY 2014 Action Plan Managing the Process response:
All public comments are always accepted and reviewed for inclusion into the
Strategic Plan and Annual Plan.

Institutional Structure

16. Describe actions that will take place during the next year to develop
institutional structure.

PY 2014 Action Plan Institutional Structure response:
The City of Beloit will work with non-profits, public institutions and the private
sector to implement the Consolidated Plan and Annual Plan. The City will
continue to utilize the Community Development Authority (CDA) for review of
the Consolidated Plan, annual action plans, proposed CDBG funding and any
CDBG budget amendments.

The entire Community Development Department, including the Beloit Housing
Authority, is now located on the third floor of City Hall. Therefore, the City and
the Housing Authority are now able to work more closely together and are
striving to partner, where it is appropriate.

Monitoring

17. Describe actions to be taken that will take place during the next year to
monitor your performance in meeting goals and objectives set forth in
your Consolidated Plan.

PY 2014 Action Plan Monitoring response:
On a quarterly basis, all CDBG applicants submit quarterly reports to the City,
which are reviewed by City staff. Additionally, the City of Beloit will review the
plan on a quarterly basis to ensure that goals and objectives are being
addressed.

18. Describe steps/actions to be taken during the next year to ensure
compliance with program requirements, including requirements
involving the timeliness of expenditures.

PY 2014 Action Plan Monitoring response:
CDBG Subgrantees will continue to be required to submit quarterly reports,
which contain information on the number of people served, progress made
toward meeting their objectives and their financial status. Community
Development staff will monitor the Subgrantees on an annual basis to ensure
compliance with HUD regulations. Their financial reports are also reviewed at



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 9 Version 2.0

this time. Following these visits, letters are sent to Subgrantees when any
problems are identified. Monitoring summaries are shared with the CDA and the
City Council when they review and approve the CDBG budget.

On an annual basis, the City reviews the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action
Plan to determine the progress made toward the goals, objectives and activities
listed in the reports.

Mid-year, City staff reviews expenditure levels to ensure that caps are not
exceeded. At this time, City staff also reviews current and prior year contracts
to ensure that funds are expended in a timely manner.

The City of Beloit will monitor the progress of subgrantees throughout the year
to ensure that they are expending their funds in a timely manner and providing
the data required by the CDBG program. Additionally, the City will reallocate
funds which are not being expended in a timely manner and/or work with
subgrantees to ensure that funds are spent.

19. Describe steps/action you will use to ensure long-term compliance with
housing codes, including actions or on-site inspections you plan to
undertake during the program year.

PY 2014 Action Plan Monitoring response:
The City of Beloit has a construction specialist who monitors the housing rehab
projects to ensure that all projects meet housing codes. Before any pay
requests are processed for a grant, an on-site inspection is completed to ensure
work is completed and housing codes are complied with. Additionally,
construction work is always inspected by a building inspector.

The City also ensures that Neighborhood Housing Services obtains the required
building permits for their new construction and housing rehab projects and
provides on-site inspections of the projects. Additionally, the City has a fair
housing code, and the Equal Opportunities and Human Relations Commission is
responsible for any fair housing cases submitted to the City.

20. Describe actions to be taken to monitor subrecipients (including
sponsors or administering agents) during the next program year. This
includes the monitoring of all programs, CDBG, HOME, ESG, or HOPWA,
as applicable.

PY 2014 Action Plan Monitoring response:
CDBG subgrantees will submit quarterly reports, which contain information on
the number of people served, progress made toward meeting their objectives
and their financial status. Staff will review the quarterly reports and ensure that
subgrantees are meeting the goals and objectives outlined in their contracts and
completing the tasks in a timely basis. Community Development staff monitor
the subgrantees on an annual basis to ensure compliance with HUD regulations.
Their financial reports will also be reviewed at this time. Following these visits,
letters will be sent to subgrantees when any problems are identified. Monitoring
summaries will be shared with the Community Development Authority and the
City Council when they review and approve the CDBG budget.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 10 Version 2.0

On an annual basis, the City reviews the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action
Plan to determine the progress made towards the goals, objectives and activities
listed in the reports.

The City receives its HOME dollars through the Rock County HOME Consortium.
Janesville is the PJ for this consortium, so all HOME activities are reported
through Janesville. The City does not receive ESG or HOPWA funds.

Description of Activities

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 3C
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit the Projects Worksheets and the Summaries
Table.

21. The action plan must provide a summary of the eligible programs or
activities that will take place during the program year to address the
priority needs and specific objectives identified in the strategic plan.

PY 2014 Action Plan Description of Activities response: (Use of the Summaries
Table and Project Worksheets or Table 3C/2A will be sufficient. No additional
narrative is required.)

The Projects Worksheets and Summaries Table provide information on the
proposed projects for the 2014 Program Year.

In the project worksheets, projects are grouped under five projects: Code
Enforcement, Economic Development, Housing Rehabilitation, Planning-Program
Administration, and Public Services. The Code Enforcement Project includes the
City’s Code Enforcement and systematic Rental Inspection program in our
deteriorated and deteriorating areas. The Housing Rehabilitation project
includes the City’s Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Fund. The Planning-
Program Administration project includes program administration activities.
Finally, the Public Services project includes the following activities:

 Community Action – Fatherhood Initiative and Skills Enhancement

 Domestic Violence Center – Emergency Housing for Homeless Victims of
Domestic Violence

 Greater Beloit Home Companion Registry

 Hands of Faith – Emergency Shelter for Homeless Families

 Merrill Community Center – Youth and Senior Programs

 NHS – Homeownership

 Stateline Literacy Council – Hispanic Outreach for Comprehensive Literacy

 Beloit Senior Chore Service

Summary of Specific Annual Objectives and Outcome Measures

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 2C and Table 3A.
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit the Summary of Specific Annual Objectives
Worksheets or Summaries.xls



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 11 Version 2.0

22. Provide a summary of specific objectives that will be addressed during
the program year. (91.220(c)(3)

PY 2014 Action Plan Summary of Specific Annual Objectives response:
(Use of the Summaries Table and Project Worksheets or Table 3C/2A will be
sufficient. No additional narrative is required.)

A summary of the specific objectives is addressed in the Summaries Table and
Project Worksheets

23. Describe the Federal Resources, and private and non-Federal public
resources expected to be available to address priority needs and specific
objectives during the program year.

PY 2014 Action Plan Summary of Specific Annual Objectives response:
(Use of the Summaries Table and Project Worksheets or Table 3C/2A will be
sufficient. No additional narrative is required.)

A summary of the specific objectives is addressed in the Summaries Table and
Project Worksheets

24. Describe the outcome measures for activities in accordance with Federal
Register Notice dated March 7, 2006, i.e., general objective category
(decent housing, suitable living environment, economic opportunity)
and general outcome category (availability/accessibility, affordability,
sustainability). 91.220(e)

PY 2014 Action Plan Summary of Objectives/Outcomes response: (Use of the
Summaries Table or Table 2C/Table 3A will be sufficient. No additional narrative
is required.)

This information is provided in the Summaries Table and Table 2C/3A.

HOUSING

Annual Affordable Housing Goals (91.220(g))

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 3B Annual Housing Completion
Goals.
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit the Table 3B Annual Housing Completion
Goals.

25. Describe the one-year goals for the number of homeless, non-homeless,
and special-needs households to be provided affordable housing using
funds made available to the jurisdiction and one-year goals for the
number of households to be provided affordable housing through
activities that provide rental assistance, production of new units,
rehabilitation of existing units, or acquisition of existing units using
funds made available to the jurisdiction. The term affordable housing
shall be defined in 24 CFR 92.252 for rental housing and 24 CFR 92.254
for homeownership.

PY 2014 Action Plan Annual Affordable Housing Goals response:



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 12 Version 2.0

The information is provided in Table 3B.

Needs of Public Housing (92.220(b))

26. Describe the manner in which the plan of the jurisdiction will help
address the needs of public housing and activities it will undertake
during the next year to encourage public housing residents to become
more involved in management and participate in homeownership.

PY 2014 Action Plan Needs of Public Housing response:
The Beloit Housing Authority (BHA) will network with local agencies,
departments and businesses to inform the public of available services for
extremely low-income, low-income and moderate-income individuals.

 The BHA will partner with NHS to provide homeownership opportunities for
its residents.

 The BHA will work with community partners to provide volunteer
opportunities for BHA residents and applicants, which exposes the extremely
low-income, low-income and moderate-income households to opportunities
to increase their job training skills, people skills and self-esteem.

 The BHA will market available programs through local newspapers and radio
stations. BHA staff will attend area Senior, Health, and Family events.

 The BHA will conduct strategic planning to address immediate capital needs
with HUD’s Capital Fund Program.

 The BHA will encourage extremely low-income, low-income and moderate-
income families to utilize the least resistive housing opportunities available
to them. They have a choice of programs that include public housing,
Section 8 rental assistance, Section 8 homeownership and Family Self-
Sufficiency.

The Housing Authority will also encourage residents to participate in the
management of BHA through opportunities to serve on a resident council or the
governing board, the CDA. There is currently one Section 8 participant on the
CDA board who also purchased a home through the Homeownership Voucher
program.

The Beloit Housing Authority maintains 131 public housing units and 598 Section
8 vouchers. As of October 2013, the waiting lists for housing were 475 for public
housing and 567 for Section 8 vouchers.

There was shift of some public housing units to Project Based Section 8.

It is not expected that any units will be removed from the public housing
inventory in the near future, but some were downsized due to the need of
smaller units rather than the larger 4-bedroom units. Given the length of the
waiting lists, we do not anticipate a decrease in the number of public housing
units. If the public housing agency is designated as "troubled" by HUD or
otherwise is performing poorly, the jurisdiction shall describe the manner in



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 13 Version 2.0

which it will provide financial or other assistance in improving its operations to
remove such designation during the next year.

PY 2014 Action Plan Needs of Public Housing response:
The Beloit Housing Authority is not a “troubled” public housing agency.

Antipoverty Strategy

27. Briefly describe the actions that will take place during the next year to
reduce the number of poverty level families (as defined by the Office of
Management and Budget and revised annually), taking into
consideration factors over which the jurisdiction has control.

PY 2014 Action Plan Antipoverty Strategy response:
Through local partnerships, the City is increasing employment while educating
citizens and providing life improvement skills.

 The City will support programs that provide assistance to persons to increase
their job skills and marketability.

 The Beloit Housing Authority will continue its Family Self-Sufficiency Program
in 2014.

 The Beloit Housing Authority will continue to provide homeownership
opportunities to Section 8 participants in cooperation with NHS in 2014.

 The City will support non-profit organizations that provide assistance and
advocacy to low- and moderate-income residents.

 The City will use the Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund to increase
the number of living wage jobs to low- and moderate-income persons in the
community.

The Housing Authority requires all public housing residents to perform 8 hours of
community service per month when the participating adult is unemployed. By
doing this, adults are learning new skills, acquiring self confidence and opening
doors for new opportunities.

The Housing Authority offers intensive case management to families which
includes budgeting classes, mentors, educational opporunities, and preferences
with local employers. Through local partnerships, the City is increasing
employment while educating citizens and providing life improvement skills.

Barriers to Affordable Housing

28. Describe the actions that will take place during the next year to remove
barriers to affordable housing.

PY 2014 Action Plan Barriers to Affordable Housing response:
1. The City updated its Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing in January of 2012.

The report concluded that the City has continues to meet the goals of affordable
and fair housing.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 14 Version 2.0

City staff will continue enforcement activity in 2014.

The City’s zoning and development regulations are comprehensive and
progressive and pose no barrier to affordable and fair housing goals for the City.

29. Describe the actions that will take place during the next year to foster
and maintain affordable housing.

PY 2014 Action Plan Barriers to Affordable Housing response:
The City of Beloit will ensure that the affordable rental units are decent, safe and
sanitary and meet local codes through its systematic rental inspection program.

The City of Beloit will support efforts by others to rehabilitate current tax credit
projects.

The City of Beloit will provide financial resources for owner-occupants to
maintain their homes.

The City of Beloit will provide financial resources for landlords to upgrade their
rental units.

Lead-based Paint

30. Describe the actions that will take place during the next year to evaluate
and reduce the number of housing units containing lead-based paint
hazards in order to increase the inventory of lead-safe housing available
to extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income families,
and how the plan for the reduction of lead-based hazards is related to
the extent of lead poisoning and hazards.

PY 2014 Action Plan Lead-based Paint response:
The Rock County Health Department will continue to refer families of children
with high lead levels to the City of Beloit’s program. We work jointly to solve
these problems.

The City of Beloit will use its Lead Hazard Reduction Grant funds in concert with
its housing rehabilitation funds. The lead funds will be used for the lead
elements to make the house lead safe, and then the housing rehabilitation funds
are used for other rehabilitation work needed to bring the home up to code. The
City received additional lead dollars in 2013, which will expire in November of
2016.

The City of Beloit Housing Services Division requires all contractors hired
through the Housing Rehabilitation Loan program to be certified lead safe,
ensuring all work completed in project homes is performed in a lead safe
manner and with lead-free replacement products.

The City will continue to operate the Rental Inspection program. Every rental
unit in the City is inspected at least once every three years by inspection officials
who are trained as Lead Hazard Investigators to look for lead risk in all units. If
orders are written to correct a lead hazard, information is sent explaining how to
fix the problem in a lead safe manner, and the property owner is cited if the lead
issue is not corrected.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 15 Version 2.0

HOMELESS

Specific Homeless Prevention Elements

*Please also refer to the Homeless Needs Table in the Needs.xls workbook.

31. Please describe, briefly, the jurisdiction’s plan for the investment and
use of available resources and describe the specific planned action steps
it will take over the next year aimed at eliminating chronic
homelessness by 2014. Again, please identify barriers to achieving this.

PY 2014 Action Plan Specific Homeless Prevention response:
The City will provide funding through the CDBG program to programs that help
chronically homeless individuals and families move into permanent housing and
assist with any other issues they may have. Specifically, the City will support
programs that provide:

 Outreach and assessment

 Supportive services

 Long-term case management and client advocacy

 Transitional housing

 Stabilization strategies to move homeless individuals into economic
independence

The Beloit Housing Authority has established a local preference for individuals
and families who are participants in the transitional living program for housing
rental assistance and those who are victims of domestic violence.

A potential barrier to accomplishing these activities would be the financial
viability of the agencies which provide homeless programs. For example, the
Domestic Violence Center has struggled over the past several years financially,
and continuing the transitional portion of the program, which provides the
longer-term support and ensures that people stop the homeless cycle, is
essential to achieving the goal of ending homelessness. Another barrier is the
public support for these programs. If the public does not support these
programs, the City Council could quit funding these programs with CDBG funds.

32. Homelessness Prevention—The jurisdiction must describe its planned
action steps over the next year to address the individual and families
with children at imminent risk of becoming homeless.

PY 2014 Action Plan Specific Homeless Prevention response:
The City will continue to fund programs that provide financial assistance to
individuals and families to prevent them from becoming homeless such as
foreclosure prevention and emergency rental assistance identified through
supportive case management.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 16 Version 2.0

The City will continue to support programs that provide rental assistance and
supportive services to homeless persons or persons at risk of becoming
homeless, such as Hands of Faith and Community Action.

The City will continue to support programs that provide credit counseling and
foreclosure prevention programs.

The City will also continue serving on the Homeless Intervention Task Force
Displacement Action Response Team, which provides a planned emergency
response to mobilize resources in the event of a mass displacement of residents
due to unfit conditions or condemnations.

33. Discharge Coordination Policy—The jurisdiction must certify it
established a policy for discharge of persons from publicly funded
institutions or systems of care (such as health care facilities, foster
care, or other youth facilities, or correction programs and institutions)
in order to prevent such discharge from immediately resulting in
homelessness for such persons. (91.225 (c)(10))

PY 2014 Action Plan Specific Homeless Prevention response:
The City will continue its involvement in the Homeless Intervention Task Force
and its Resources Subcommittee, which continually addresses coordination of
services and discharge as well as promotes the implementation of universal
forms and participation in the State’s homeless database, WI ServicePoint.

Emergency Shelter Grants (ESG)

34. If applicable, describe how the ESG matching requirements will be met.

PY 2014 Action Plan ESG response:
This is not applicable. The City of Beloit does not received ESG dollars.

35. (States only) Describe the process for awarding grants to State
recipients, and a description of how the allocation will be made available
to units of local government.

PY 2014 Action Plan ESG response:
Not Applicable.

NON-HOMELESS SPECIAL NEEDS HOUSING

Non-homeless Special Needs (91.220 (c) and (e))

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 1B.
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Needs Table/Non-Homeless Needs.

36. Please describe any supportive housing activities being undertaken to
address the priority housing needs of persons who are not homeless
(elderly, frail elderly, persons with disabilities, persons with HIV/AIDS,
persons with alcohol or other substance abuse problems).



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 17 Version 2.0

PY 2014 Action Plan Non-homeless Special Needs response:
The City will continue to support programs for seniors such as the Home
Companion Registry, Senior Chore Service and Grinnell Hall.

The City will provide deferred housing rehab loans to special needs populations.

The Beloit Housing Authority has 41 housing units for the elderly and disabled,
and has established a local preference for elderly and disabled residents.

The City will make special needs issues a priority when budgeting CDBG funds.
The Beloit Housing Authority will continue to use its funds to provide services
and housing to these populations.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Community Development Block Grant

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 2B, Table 1C Summary of Specific
Objectives.
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit the Needs Worksheets/Non-Housing
Community Development and Summary of Specific Annual Objectives Worksheets or
Summaries.xls

37. Identify the estimated amount of CDBG funds that will be used for
activities that benefit persons of low- and moderate-income (an amount
generally not to exceed ten percent of the total available CDBG funds
may be excluded from the funds for which eligible activities are
described if it has been identified as a contingency for cost overruns.)

PY 2014 Action Plan Community Development response:
$500,000 in 2014 new grant dollars and an estimated $346,188 in program
income will be used for activities that benefit person of low- and moderate-
income. $60,000 of this is generated from LMI rental properties in the City-wide
Rental Dwelling Permit program. This program requires all rental units to be
inspected on a three year cycle to ensure the properties are maintained to the
minimum standards outlined in the City’s Property Maintenance Code.

38. CDBG resources must include the following in addition to the annual
grant:

a. Program income expected to be received during the program year,
including:

i. The amount expected to be generated by and deposited to
revolving loan funds;

PY 2014 Community Development response:
$60,000 is expected to be generated by and deposited to revolving loan
funds.

The total amount expected to be received during the current
program year from a float-funded activity described in a prior
statement or plan.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 18 Version 2.0

PY 2014 Community Development response:
No funds are expected to be received during the program year from a
float-funded activity described in a prior statement or plan.

b. Program income received in the preceding program year that has
not been included in a statement or plan;

PY 2014 Community Development response:
There is not any program income that has been received in the preceding
program year that has not been included in a statement or plan.

c. Proceeds from Section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during
the year to address the priority needs and specific objectives in its
strategic plan;

PY 2014 Community Development response:
The City of Beloit does not have any Section 108 loan guarantees.

d. Surplus funds from any urban renewal settlement for community
development and housing activities; and

PY 2014 Community Development response:
The City of Beloit does not have any surplus funds from an urban renewal
settlement.

e. Any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned
use has not been included in a prior statement or plan.

PY 2014 Community Development response:
The City of Beloit does not have any grant funds returned to the line of
credit for which the planned use has not been included in a prior statement
or plan.

41. NA If a jurisdiction intends to carry out a new CDBG float-funded
activity, the jurisdiction’s plan must include the following
information:

a. For the program income included in 1(b) above, the jurisdiction
should identify the month(s) and year(s) in which the program
income will be received; and which of the following options it will
take for each float-funded activity to address the risk that the
activity may fail to generate adequate program income:

i. amend or delete activities in the amount equal to any amount
due from default or failure to produce sufficient income in a
timely manner. (If this option is chosen, the action plan must
include a description of the process it will use to select activities
to be amended or deleted and how it will involve citizens in that
process), OR



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 19 Version 2.0

ii. obtain an irrevocable line of credit from a commercial lender for
the full amount of the float-funded activity. (If this option is
chosen, information on the float-funded activity in the action
plan must include the lender and the terms of the irrevocable
line of credit), OR

iii. agree to transfer general local government funds to the CDBG
line of credit in the full amount of any default or shortfall within
30 days of the float-funded activity’s failure to generate
projected program income on schedule.

PY 2014 Community Development response:
The City of Beloit is not carrying out any float-funded activities.

39. Identify the jurisdiction's priority non-housing community development
needs eligible for assistance by CDBG eligibility category specified in the
Community Development Needs, public facilities, public improvements,
public services and economic development. (Use of Table 2B or the
Community Development Needs Table is sufficient, additional narrative
is not required)

a. For activity for which the jurisdiction has not yet decided on a
specific location, such as when a jurisdiction is allocating an amount
of funds to be used for making loans or grants to businesses or for
residential rehabilitation, provide a description of who may apply for
the assistance, the process by which the grantee expects to select
who will receive the assistance (including selection criteria), and
how much and under what terms the assistance will be provided.

PY 2014 Community Development response:
Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund: This loan fund provides loans
to for-profit commercial, industrial or service sector businesses that will
locate or expand in the City of Beloit by creating or retaining jobs.

Program funds are used to assist a business to finance exterior and interior
building improvements, purchase land and building, new construction,
purchase of machinery and equipment, land improvements, demolition, and
leasehold improvements.

The program will loan a business up to 30 percent of the total project cost.
The interest rate is as follows:

 If loaned in conjunction with a bank loan, 75 percent of the bank rate.

 Stand alone loans will be set at 75 percent of the Wall Street Prime rate
at time of loan approval for projects with loan term greater than 10
years. 65 percent of Wall Street Prime rate for 1-10 year loan term.

The repayment terms are up to 25 years for land and buildings and 10 years
for machinery and equipment.

The criteria used are the following:



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 20 Version 2.0

 Ratio of Program dollars to the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs
created or retained, not to exceed $35,000 per job. For FTE
calculations, a full-time position will be employed 35 hours per week.

 At least 51 percent of the jobs created or retained must be available for
low- to moderate-income persons.

 Ratio of Program dollars to private dollars in a project cannot be less
than two private dollars for each Program dollar.

 Only those expenditures made within 18 months after approval of the
Program loan shall be counted in the public/private dollar match.

 Applicant must contribute at least 10 percent equity into the project.

Housing Rehab Revolving Loan Fund: Housing rehab loans are available to
any low- to moderate-income homeowner in the City of Beloit and any
investor-owned rental units in the City of Beloit which is occupied by a low-
to moderate-income family.

Additional Criteria: For homeowner loans, applicants must have equity in
their homes, be free and clear of any judgments, and be current with their
property taxes, with no delinquencies.

The individual loans available to owner-occupied properties are tailored to
meet the applicant’s financial needs and resources. Owner-occupied interest
rates are 0 percent deferred payment loans or a 3 percent amortized loan.
Investment property loans are offered at a fixed 3 percent rate.

The maximum loan amount for rehabilitation loans is $20,000 for one
dwelling unit, $25,000 for two units and $8,000 for additional dwelling units.

Owner-occupied property loans are available up to a 15-year term or can be
deferred as long as the owner occupies the home. Investment property
loans are available for ten years.

The Housing Rehab program consists of four loan programs: Owner-
occupied Low Interest and Deferred Payment Loans, Rental Housing Rehab
Program, Distressed Property Loan Program, and Construction Loan
Program.

40. Identify specific long-term and short-term community development
objectives (including economic development activities that create jobs),
developed in accordance with the statutory goals described in section
24 CFR 91.1 and the primary objective of the CDBG program to provide
decent housing and a suitable living environment and expand economic
opportunities, principally for low- and moderate-income persons.

(Use of Table 2B or the Community Development Needs Table and
Summaries Table is sufficient, additional narrative is not required)

PY 2014 Community Development response:
This information is provided in Table 2B.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 21 Version 2.0

41. An “urgent need” activity may be included in the action plan only if the
jurisdiction certifies that the activity is designed to meet other
community development needs having a particular urgency because
existing conditions pose a serious and imminent threat to the health or
welfare of the community and other financial resources are not
available.

PY 2014 Community Development response:
The City of Beloit is not providing any funding for “urgent needs”.

HOME/ American Dream Down payment Initiative (ADDI)
NA

42. Describe other forms of investment not described in § 92.205(b).

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

43. Describe how HOME matching requirements will be satisfied?

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

44. If the participating jurisdiction (PJ) will use HOME or ADDI funds for
homebuyers, it must state the guidelines for resale or recapture, as
required in § 92.254 of the HOME rule.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

45. Describe the policy and procedures the PJ will follow to affirmatively
market housing containing five or more HOME-assisted units.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

46. Describe actions to be taken to establish and oversee a minority
outreach program within the jurisdiction to ensure inclusion, to the
maximum extent possible, of minority and women, and entities owned
by minorities and women, including without limitation, real estate firms,
construction firms, appraisal firms, management firms, financial
institutions, investment banking, underwriters, accountants, and
providers of legal services, in all contracts, entered into by the PJ with
such persons or entities, public and private, in order to facilitate the
activities of the PJ to provide affordable housing under the HOME
program or any other Federal housing law applicable to such
jurisdiction.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 22 Version 2.0

47. NA If you intend to use HOME funds for Tenant-Based Rental
Assistance, describe the local market conditions that led to the use of
the HOME funds for a tenant-based rental assistance program.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

48. NA If the TBRA program will target or provide preference for a
special needs group, identify that group from the Consolidated Plan as
having an unmet need and show that the preference is needed to
narrow the gap in benefits and services received by that population?

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

49. NA If the PJ will use HOME funds to refinance existing debt secured
by multifamily housing that is that is being rehabilitated with HOME
funds, it must state its refinancing guidelines required under §
92.206(b). The guidelines shall describe the conditions under which the
PJ will refinance existing debt. At a minimum these guidelines must:

a. Demonstrate that rehabilitation is the primary eligible activity and
ensure that this requirement is met by establishing a minimum level
of rehabilitation per unit or a required ratio between rehabilitation
and refinancing.

b. Require a review of management practices to demonstrate that
disinvestments in the property has not occurred; that the long-term
needs of the project can be met; and that the feasibility of serving
the targeted population over an extended affordability period can be
demonstrated.

c. State whether the new investment is being made to maintain
current affordable units, create additional affordable units, or both.

d. Specify the required period of affordability, whether it is the
minimum 15 years or longer.

e. Specify whether the investment of HOME funds may be jurisdiction-
wide or limited to a specific geographic area, such as a
neighborhood identified in a neighborhood revitalization strategy
under 24 CFR 91.215(e)(2) or a Federally designated Empowerment
Zone or Enterprise Community.

f. State that HOME funds cannot be used to refinance multifamily loans
made or insured by any federal program, including CDBG.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

50. NA If the PJ is going to receive American Dream Down payment
Initiative (ADDI) funds, please complete the following narratives:



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 23 Version 2.0

a. Describe the planned use of the ADDI funds.

b. Describe the PJ's plan for conducting targeted outreach to residents
and tenants of public housing and manufactured housing and to
other families assisted by public housing agencies, for the purposes
of ensuring that the ADDI funds are used to provide down payment
assistance for such residents, tenants, and families.

c. Describe the actions to be taken to ensure the suitability of families
receiving ADDI funds to undertake and maintain homeownership,
such as provision of housing counseling to homebuyers.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable

Housing Opportunities for People with AIDS NA

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 1B.
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Needs Table/HOPWA.

51. Provide a Brief description of the organization, the area of service, the
name of the program contacts, and a broad overview of the range/ type
of housing activities to be done during the next year.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOPWA response:
Not applicable.

52. Specify the one-year goals for the number of low-income households to
be provided affordable housing using HOPWA funds for short-term rent,
mortgage, and utility payments to prevent homelessness; tenant-based
rental assistance, units provided in housing facilities that are being
developed, leased, or operated.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOPWA response:
Not applicable.

53. Please describe the expected trends facing the community in meeting
the needs of persons living with HIV/AIDS and provide additional
information regarding the administration of services to people with
HIV/AIDS.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOPWA response:
Not applicable.

54. Identify the method for selecting project sponsors (including providing
full access to grassroots, faith-based and other community
organizations).

PY 2014 Action Plan HOPWA response:
Not applicable.

55. Please note any evaluations, studies or other assessments that will be
conducted on the local HOPWA program during the next year.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 24 Version 2.0

PY 2014 Action Plan HOPWA response:
Not applicable.

Other Narrative

Include any Action Plan information that was not covered by a narrative in any other
section.

No Additional Narrative will be provided.



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

 
 
 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 AGENDA ITEM: 5b 
 
 TOPIC: Resolution 2013-31 
 
  ACTION: Consideration of Resolution 2013-31 Recommending Approval 

of the 2013 Community Development Block Grant budget 
 
 PRESENTER: Teri Downing 
 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
 
Attached is a resolution recommending approval of the 2014 CDBG budget and the 
spreadsheet listing the agencies requesting funding.  The Department of Housing and Urban 
Development has not given us an estimate for CDBG funding this year.  Therefore, we are 
estimating an award of $500,000, which is similar to last year’s award.   
 
The spreadsheet lists the maximum funding level allowed for public services at $126,928, 
which is 15% of the 2014 grant plus 2013 program income.  Also reflected on this spreadsheet 
is the maximum amount you may award for planning and administration, which we are 
recommending capping at $134,000.  
 
Also, included on the spreadsheet is the projected 2014 Program Income, which revolves back 
into the program that created the income.  You have the option however, to allocate those 
funds to other eligible activities. 
 
Please note that three activities have a relationship to the City of Beloit’s proposed Operating 
Budget or Capital Improvement Budget.  These are all eligible CDBG expenditures, but funding 
these below the requested amount would have an impact on the City’s Proposed Budgets. 
 

 The Code Enforcement/Inspection program provides funding for all or a portion of 
salaries and benefits for the Director of Community and Housing Services, one 
secretary and two or more inspectors’ salary and benefits.   
 

 The Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Program includes funding for two positions 



which are required to operate the program.   
 

 The Planning and Administration budget includes funding for several people required 
to operate the CDBG program.   

 
The attached spreadsheet has a column for a staff recommendation and CDA recommendation. 
A budget worksheet with a staff recommendation will be handed out at the CDA meeting.  The 
CDA recommendation will be listed when it is presented to the City Council before the October 
21 meeting. 
 
Once the CDA has made its recommendation, the budget will be incorporated into the City’s 
draft Annual Action Plan, which is required in order to receive CDBG funds.  There are 
individual project sheets that are also submitted to HUD along with the Plan.  A 30-day public 
review period is also required, which will begin October 1st. 
 

 October 1 – October 31: Public Review Period: A notice announcing the 30-day 
public review period will be published in the Beloit Daily News, posted on the front 
page of the City’s website, and mailed to agencies and individuals on the CDBG mailing 
list. During the 30-day public review period the Annual Action Plan and 2013 budget 
will be available to the public at the Beloit Public Library, 3rd floor of City Hall, and on 
the City’s website. Public comments submitted during this time period are incorporated 
into the Plan. 

 October 21: Public Hearing at City Council: The City Council will hold a public 
hearing on the Annual Action Plan and CDBG budget. Public comments are incorporated 
into the Plan from this hearing as well. 

 November 4: City Council Approval: Once the required 30-day public review period is 
completed, the City Council will act on the plan. 

 November 15: Annual Action Plan submitted to HUD: The Annual Action Plan and 
CDBG Budget are reviewed by HUD staff for approval. 

 
A summary of the 2014 applications that were submitted and the monitoring results for the 
2013 CDBG Program Year will be provided at the CDA Meeting. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff recommends that the Resolution 2013-31 be approved.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Resolution 2013-31, 2014 CDBG Budget spreadsheet, Application Summaries, and 
Monitoring Summaries 



 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2013-31 

RECOMMENDING APPROVAL  
OF THE 2014 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) BUDGET 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit expects to receive $500,000 in 2013 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, and 

 
WHEREAS, all recommended projects are consistent with the 2010 - 2014 

Consolidated Plan and 2014 Annual Action Plan, and 
 

WHEREAS, all recommended projects are eligible CDBG activities. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Community Development Authority 
recommends the 2014 CDBG budget as identified on the attached budget spreadsheet. 
 
 
Adopted this 25h day of September, 2013. 
 
 

 
 
         
Thomas Johnson, Chairman 
 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
   
Julie Christensen, Executive Director 
 



2014 Community Development Block Grant Budget Spreadsheet

2013 Award 2014 Request

2014 Staff

Recommendation

2014 CDA

Recommendation

Public Service: 15% cap = $126,928

1 Community Action - Fatherhood Initiative and Skills Enhancement 19,702$ 60,000$ 21,000$

2 Family Services - The Key: Transitional Living Program 6,896$ -$ -$

3 Family Services - Beloit Domestic Violence Center: Emergency Housing 6,896$ 12,000$ 12,000$

4 Family Services - Home Companion Registry for Senior Personal Care 14,692$ 15,000$ 15,000$

5 Family Services - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Rehousing Project 9,935$ -$ -$

6 Hands of Faith - Emergency Shelter for Homeless Families 7,388$ 9,500$ 9,500$

7 Merrill Community Center - Youth and Senior Programs 19,702$ 30,000$ 21,000$

8 NHS - Homeownership: The Solution to Eliminating Blight in the City of Beloit 19,007$ 42,000$ 21,000$

9 Salvation Army: After School Programming -$ 10,400$ -$

10 Stateline Literacy Council - Hispanic Outreach for Comprehensive Literacy 19,702$ 25,000$ 20,616$

11 Voluntary Action Center - Beloit Senior Chore Service 6,896$ 6,812$ 6,812$

Total Public Services 130,816$ 210,712$ 126,928$

Planning and Program Administration: 20% cap = $134,000

12 Fair Housing Activities 15,000$ 15,000$ 5,000$

13 Program Administration (No Application Needed) 118,247$ 130,000$ 125,000$

Total Planning and Program Administration 133,247$ 145,000$ 130,000$

Code Enforcement

14 Community Development Dept. - Code Enforcement / Inspection Program 110,900$ 185,845$ 115,000$

Total Code Enforcement 110,900$ 185,845$ 115,000$

Housing Rehabilitation

15 Community Development Dept. - Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Program 177,950$ 163,978$ 128,093$

Total Housing Rehabilitation 177,950$ 163,978$ 128,093$

Economic Development

16 Economic Development - Commercial and Industrial Revolving Loan Fund -$ -$ -$

Total Economic Development -$ -$ -$

GRAND TOTAL 552,913$ 705,535$ 500,021$

CDBG Funds Available 552,913$ 500,000$ 500,000$

Surplus/Deficit -$ (205,535)$ (21)$



Estimated Program Income

2013 Estimated

Program Income

2013 Actual

Program Income

2014 Projected

Program Income

17 Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund $63,000 215,188$ 39,000$

18 Code Enforcement $74,100 60,000$ 60,000$

19 Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Fund $50,000 63,000$ 63,000$

20 Neighborhood Housing Services $8,000 8,000$ 8,000$

Total Estimated Program Income $350,000 346,188$ 170,000$

Total CDBG Budget $837,765 670,000$

Pub Service Cap = (2014 Grant + 2013 PI) x 15% 126,928

Planning Cap = (2014 Grant + 2014 PI ) x 20% 134,000



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 AGENDA ITEM: 5c 
 
 TOPIC: Resolution recommending a 2014 HOME budget to City Council 
 
 ACTION: Consideration of Resolution 2013-32 Recommending Approval of 

the 2014 HOME Investment Partnerships Program budget 
 
 PRESENTER: Julie Christensen 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
 
In July 2001, the City Council approved an intergovernmental agreement with Rock County and 
Janesville regarding a Rock County HOME Consortium.  This agreement created the Consortium 
and made us eligible to receive an annual allocation of HOME dollars.  According to HOME 
Investment Partnership Program guidelines, 15 percent must be allocated to a Community 
Housing Development Organization (CHDO).  In this HOME agreement, it was determined that 
this 15 percent would be allocated to a CHDO in Beloit.  This agreement also established that 
the City of Beloit would receive 19 percent of the Consortium dollars awarded. 
 
For 2014, we are estimating that the Consortium will receive $404,922.  Based on that budget, 
the City of Beloit’s share would be $76,935, and the CHDO share would be $60,738.  Staff is 
recommending that the City’s dollars be used to fund the City’s Housing Rehabilitation 
Revolving Loan Fund.  At this time, staff is recommending that the CHDO dollars remain 
unallocated.  Given the issues we have had with utilizing the CHDO dollars, we would like to 
award those dollars at a later point.  We will bring the CHDO portion of the budget to the CDA 
when we are prepared to recommend which agency (NHS or Community Action) has the 
capacity to spend these dollars.  In either case, we would recommend the funds be awarded to 
acquisition-rehabilitation projects. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff recommends that the Resolution 2013-32 be approved.    
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Resolution 2013-XX 



  
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-32 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF THE 2014 HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP 

(HOME) BUDGET  
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit is expected to receive $76,935 in HOME Investment 
Partnership (HOME) funds for City projects and $60,738 in Community Housing Development 
Organization (CHDO) projects in 2014, and 

 
WHEREAS, Neighborhood Housing Services of Beloit (NHS) and Community Action, Inc. 

(CAI) are both eligible Community Housing Development Organizations in the City of Beloit, and 
 
WHEREAS, CHDO dollars are required to be expended on development activities and are 

recommended to be used for acquisition-rehabilitation projects, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s housing rehabilitation loan program and acquisition-rehabilitation 

projects are eligible HOME projects, and 
 

WHEREAS, the two recommended projects are consistent with the City’s Consolidated 
Plan. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Community Development Authority 

recommends that the City Council allocate the 2014 City HOME funds to the City’s housing 
rehabilitation loan program for owner-occupied and rental rehabilitation projects and the 2013 
CHDO funds to either NHS’ or CAI’s acquisition-rehabilitation programs. 
 

Adopted this 25th day of September, 2013. 
 
 

         
Thomas M. Johnson, Chairman 
Beloit Community Development Authority 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Julie Christensen, Executive Director 
Beloit Community Development Authority 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 AGENDA ITEM: 5d 
 
 TOPIC: Resolution recommending an exchange of land with Hendricks 

Commercial Properties LLC 
 
 ACTION: Consideration of Resolution 2013-33, Authorizing the CDA to 

Exchange Land with Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC 
 
 PRESENTER: Julie Christensen 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
 
Hendricks Commercial Properties LLC (HCP) is currently constructing the Phoenix project.  The 
land they own includes a small parcel (identified as Parcel A on attached Plat of Survey).  This 
small parcel is completely surrounded by the Broad Street Parking Lot.  HCP had planned to 
locate their dumpster on this parcel.  However, the planned dumpster does not fit on this 
parcel.  They would like to exchange property with the CDA.  They would like to deed Parcel A 
to the Community Development Authority and have Parcel B deeded to them. 
 
The City of Beloit has no particular use for this portion of the Broad Street Parking Lot and is 
willing to do this exchange of land.  The parking lot would have to be redesigned slightly to 
accommodate this exchange of land but has no concerns about doing that. 
 
At the meeting, I will provide a site plan which shows how this dumpster will be sited in relation 
to the Broad Street Parking Lot and the Phoenix development. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff recommends that the Resolution 2013-33 be approved.    
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Resolution 2013-33 



  
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2013-33 

AUTHORIZING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO EXCHANGE LAND 
WITH HENDRICKS COMMERICAL PROPERTIES, LLC 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Authority is the owner of the Broad Street Parking Lot 
located at 425 Broad Street; and  

 
WHEREAS, a parcel of land owned by Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC, is contained within 

and completely surrounded by the Broad Street Parking Lot, and  
 

WHEREAS, as part of the Phoenix Project, Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC, desires to 
locate their dumpster and dumpster enclosure within the Broad Street Parking Lot, and  

 
WHEREAS, the parcel owned by Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC, is not the appropriate 

size and is not located in the best location for the dumpster and dumpster enclosure, and 
 
WHEREAS, Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC, desires to exchange its parcel with a new 

parcel located with the Broad Street Parking Lot as illustrated in the attached Plat of Survey.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the CDA authorizes the exchange of land as illustrated 

on the attached Plat of Survey as long as a Certified Survey Map is completed to create Parcel B, and  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the CDA authorizes the Executive Director of 
the Community Development Authority to complete all paperwork in conjunction with this exchange. 
 

Adopted this 25th day of September, 2013. 
 
 
 
    
 Thomas Johnson, CDA Chairperson 
  
ATTEST:       
 
 
  
Julie Christensen, Executive Director 

 




	4b-Budget Report to Board 07 13.pdf
	4d-Budget Report to Board 08 13.pdf
	4e-Final Report - Disposal of Equipment.pdf
	4e-Staff Report Disposal of equipment.pdf
	4e-Resolution 2013-29 Disposal of Non-operating Equipment.pdf

	5a-Final Report - Annual Plan.pdf
	5a-CDA Report - 2014 CDBG Annual Action Plan.pdf
	REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

	5a-2014 Annual Plan (DRAFT).pdf

	5b-Final Report - CDBG Budget.pdf
	5b-CDA Report - 2014 CDBG Budget.pdf
	REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

	5b-CDA - Resolution - 2014 CDBG Budget.pdf
	5b-2014 CDBG Budget - (CDA 9-25-2013).pdf

	5c-Report to CDA and Resolution - 2014 HOME Budget.pdf
	REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

	5d-Final Report - HCP Parking Lot Land Exchange.pdf
	5d-HCP Parking Lot Land Exchange.pdf
	REPORT TO THE BELOIT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

	POS.pdf


